
\• ¡ 
! 

UNITED NATIONS 1418't:h meeting 

ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL COUNCIL Monday, 7 Maroh 1.966, 
at 3.~0 p.m. 

Agenda item 1.4: 

F ortieth Sessian 
OFFICIAL RECORDS 

CONTENTS 
Page 

Eleotions (oonoluded). • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • 93 
Eleotion of members of the Governing Coun-

oil of the United Nations Development Pro-
gramme . ....... , .... , . . . . . . . . . 95 

Eleotion of members of tho Exeoutive Board 
of the United Nations Children's Funri. • • 95 

Eleotion of the members of the Committee 
on Non-Governmental Organizations. • • • 95 

Credentials of representatives. • • • • • • • • • • • 96 

President: Mr. Tewfik BOUATTOURA CAI~eria). 

Present: 

Repl'~Sentatives of the following States: Algeria, 
Cameroon, Canada, Chile, Czechoslovakia, Dahomey, 
Ecuador, F::<>ance, Gabon, Greece, India, Iran, Ire,q, 
Luxembourg, Morocco, Pakistan, Panama, Peru, 
Philippinese Romania, Sierra Leone, Sweden, Union 
of Soviet Socia list Republics, United Kingdom of 
Great Britain and Northern :Creland, United Republic 
of Tanzania, United State8 of America, Venezuela. 

Observers for the following Member States: Argen
tina, Australia, Austria, Brazil, Byelorussian Soviet· 
Socialist Republic, China, Cuba, Denmark, Hungary;, 
Ireland, Italy, Japan, Mauritania, Mexico, Nigeria, 
Poland, Tunisia, Turkey, Ukrainian Soviet Socialist 
Republic, United Arab Republic, Uruguay. 

The observer for the following non-member State: 
Federal Republic of Germany. 

Representativas of the following specialized agen
cies: International Labour Organisation; Food and 
Agricultura Organization of the United Nations; United 
Nations Educational, ScienUfic and Cultural Organiza
tion; World Health Organizat~on; International Bank 
for Reconstruction and Development. 

The representativa of the International Atomic 
Energy. 

AGENDA ITEM 14 
' . 

E lections (concluded) (E/4153and Add.l-4, E/4154and 
Corr.l and Add.T and Add.l/Corr.l and Add.2, 
E/4160; E/L.1113/Add.l, E/L-: .. 1113/Rev.l, E/ 
L.1116) 

1. Mr. DJOUDI (Algeria) said that the primary pur
pose of draft resolution E/L.ll13/Rev.1 was to take 
account of the new situation created by the enlarge
ment of the Ecvnomic and Social Council. He drew 
attention to the fact that, prior to the enlargement of 
the Council, the membership of the· majority of the 
'functional commissions had been larger than that 

93 

NEWYORK 

of the Council itself. The draft was also designed 
to ensure a more equitable geographical distribution 
of the seats on the commissions. 

2. In view of the support which had been given by 
the socialist countries to efforts to improve tbe 
representation of the developing countries in United 
Nations bodies, his delegation, for its part, was ready 
to accept the amendments submitted in document 
E/L.1116. 

3. Mr. ROOSEVELT (United States · of America) 
said that bis delegation was in favour of an enlarge
ment ()f the commissions. However, it also considerad 
that, at least in the case of so me of the commissions, 
the need for expertise could not be ignored. His 
country had always supported effo:rts to ensure 
equitable representation in United Nations bodies. 

4. It was un iortunate that differences of opinion which 
had arisen were regarded as an EPst-West confronta
tion, as they had been made to appear by tha Soviet 
representativa; that would place neutral nations in a 
difficult position. His delegationhadnever so regarded 
them. When the General Assembly had adopted 
tbe formula of a membérship of twenty-seven (for the 
Economic and Social Council (resolution 1991 B 
(XVIII)), it had done so after a genuine attempt to 
find a solution which was fair and could receive the 
greatest possible measure of agreement. The USSR 
delegation had participated in the discussions at that 
time, at least informally. The United States delega
tion had abstained in the vote on the question in the 
General Assembly and therefore could scarcely be 
accused of ha ving impqsed any formula. The repre
sentativa of the United Republic of Tanzania also ap
peared to consider that the number fixed by the 
Assembly was unjust. If it was, the place to alter 
the decision was in the Assembly. At present, the 
Council could only base itself on the figure agreed 
upon' by the Assembly. The sponsors of draft resolu
tion E/L.1113/Rev.l had felt that the commissions 
mentioned in opera ti ve paragraph 1 should ha ve twenty
seven members, and he thoughtitwouldbeundesirable 
to change that figure simply in order to give one 
group greater representation. Ctl>nsideringthe question 
from a strictly arithmetical sf;andpoint, the socialist 
countries of Eastern Europe already enjoyed a slightly 
larger representation in the Council than they did 
in the General Assembly itself. 

5. His delegation could support the draft resolution 
in its present form and would not like to be obliged 
to oppose it. He hoped that members would not force 
a division on such an issue by insistingon the amend
ment. 

6. Mr. VARELA (Panama) said that his country re
garded it as a great privilege to be able to take part 
on an equal footing with much larger and more . 

E/SR.l418 



94 Economic and Social CoWl.cil - Fortieth Session 

economically advanced countries in. the deliberations 
of the Council. He had opposed the resolution in
creasing the me:mbership of the Council Committee 
on Non-Governmental Organizations because he had 
:telt that it would make the Committee's work harder 
and delay decisions. He had considerable doubts re
garding the desirability of increasing the membership 
of committees to the point where they became un
Wielcly. He considered that the membership of the 
functional commission should not exceed that of the 
Council, which was twenty-seven. The GeneralAssem
bly, in fixing the composition of the Council, had 
given due thought to the representation of the various 
ideological tendencias. He also agreed that the question 
of expertise was important. 

7. The best course would seem to be to accept the sug
gestion made by the representativa of Morocco 
(1417th meeting) to defer the whole matter. If, 
however, the majority decided that the question should 
be put to the vote at the present meeting, he hoped 
that the decision could be taken in an amicable 
atmosphere and with full respect for the right of each 
State representad in the Council to reach its own 
decision. 

8. Mr. WHYTE (United Kingdom) said tbat the United 
States representative's statement had done much to 
clarify a situation which had become ratber confused 

. as a fesult of t~tatements at th~ previous meeting. With 
regard tº the amendments in dncument E/L.l116, 
bis delegation oould see no justification whatever for 
claiming that the pattern laid down in the composition 
of the Council waa unfair to Eastern Europe. 

9. Mr. LOPEZ (Philippines) said tnat his delegation 
had alw~'\ys favoured limitation of the membership 
of the commissions to twenty-seven. The membership 
of those commissions should not exceed the member
ship of the Council itself and the n.umb~r twenty-seven, 
being divisible by threc. was better adaptad to the 
annual election of one third of the membership. 

lOe If it was now felt that the legitimate destre 
of any particular group for a more equitable distribu
tion should be satisfied, then his delegation believed 
that such redistribution should be carried out within 
tbe present proposed total of twenty-seven seats, 
rather than by adding a further seat. The Council 
was the master of its own procedure and need not 
be bound by the considerations whicb had led to the 
enlargement of the Council itself under General 
Assembly resolution 1991 B (XVIII). His delegation 
would have misgivings, 'however, if one group was 
deprived of a seat in favour of another. Calculations 
showed tbat a redistribution of seats in favour of the 
group of socialist States of Eastern Europe would in 
fact be at the expense oftheAsianand African groups, 
rather than of the Western European group. In view 
of the great importance of the matter and the fact 
that the Council was deeply divided, he supported 
the suggestion of the representativa of Morocco that 
no decision should be taken until the forty-first 
session. He hoped that further negotiations would lead 
to a solution acceptable to the great majority of 
tnembers of the Council, and urged the countries 
of the Western European andEasternEuropeangroups 
to ':make every effort to reach such a solutlon before 
the next session. 

1.1. Mr. KHALAF (Iraq) said that his delegation did 
not view the matter in the ligbt of East-West com
petition; its only concern was for the efficient function
ing of the commissions. It saw considerable merit 
in the amendments submitted in document E/L.1116, 
but had also been impressed by the United States 
representative•s argument. A solut1on to thedifficulty 
which had arisen would clearly take time, and he 
therefore supported the Moroccan suggestion that 
the decision should be deferred. In that way, elections 
could be held both for the seats being ve.cated and 
for the new seats p and since the terms of office 
were to begin on 1 January 1967, Goyernments would 
have ample time to consider whether or not they 
wished to be candidatas. 

12. Mr. VIAUD (France) said that bis Government 
was concerned only that there should be an equitable . 
distribution of seats, based on the past e:JCI)erience 
of tho United Nations. The ratio of Western European 
States to Eastern European States in the General 
Assembly was approximately two ... and-one-half to 
one, bui: a better and more recent indication was given 
by the membership of the Trade and Development 
Board. In that body, there were eighteen seats for 
Western European and other S tates, and six for . 
socialist countries of Eastern Europe. It was there
fore quite olear that the distribution of seats proposed 
in the three-Power amendment~ (E/L.1116) would 
be completely unfair and he hoped that draft resolution 
E/L.1113/Rev.1 would be adopted in its present 
form. 

13. If it was assumed, for the sake of argument, that 
there were to be twenty-eight seats, the Council should 
then be guided by the distribution of seats in the Trade 
and Development Board. That distribution provided 
a frame of reference, and its rejection would only 
lead to further complex problema of distribution. If 
the membership of the commissions was to be en
largad, it was only natural that the new composition 
should be based on those precedente and, more specifi
cally, on the numerical and economía importance 
of the various groups in the United Nations. The 
French delegation could therefore never accept a situa
tion in which a group of eight or nine S tates held more 
than the equivalent of half the number of sea.*s allo- 1 

cated to the twenty-two States of Western Europe and 
others. · 

14. Mr. MISHRA (India), speaking on apointoforder, 
moved the suspension of the meeting under rule 54 
of the rules of procedure, to enable the African 
and Asian members of the Council · to reach a con-
sensus on the matter before the Council. 

15. The PRESIDENT said that ifhe heard no objection 
the meeting would be suspended. 

The meeting was suspended at 4.2!5 p.m. 2nd re
sumed at !5 p.m. 

16. Mr. VAKIL (Iran), speaking on behalf of the 
sponsors of draft resolution E/L.1113/Rev.1 and the 
amendments thereto (E/L.ll16), proposed that con
sideration of the draft resolution and the elections 
concerned should be adjourned until the forty-ftrst 
session of the Council. In the meantime, consultations 
should be continuad w1th a view to achieving a com-

.. '" .......... ~~-~~-.. ~. ~ ,. . ·~ ,._...._,, . -"' j 
'O• • • • + •-• • -e:•~·--~-=~-" • -~~-~--~-· -·· • "~-.. =--~_. :=:_ :' ~~~ : ::~:· _.: .. ::::::~:"""" • •• _.:_~+" 



1418th meeting- 7 March 1966 S5 

promise that would satisfy a large majority of the 
members of the Council. 

Tbe Iranian proposat was adopted. 

17. Mr. KHALAF (Iraq) suggested that the remai:n.ing 
elections to be held by the Council should also be 
postponed, because they presentad certain procedural 
difficulties. 

18. Mr. FERNANDINI (Peru) supported that sug
gestion. 
19. With regard to the question of geographical 
representation, he observed that the equal repre
sentation of Latin American States and Asian States 
was an established fact and should not be questioned. 

20. Mr. OWONO (Cameroon) expressed opposition 
to the postponemen~ of the remaining election~. 

21. Mr. WALDRON-RAMSEY (United Republic of 
Tanzania) agreed t:'lth the Cameroonia.n representa
tiva. He endorsed the Peruvian representativa 's · 
remarks on the question of geographical representa
tion. 

ELECTION OF MEMBERS OF THE GOVERNING 
COUNCIL OF THE UNITED NATIONS DEVELOP
MENT PROGRAMME 

22. The PRESIDENT drew attention to the fact that,. 
in accordc.nce with General Assembly :resolution 2029 
(XX) of 22 November 1965 (annex, para. 1 (Q)), the 
Council had to elect twelve members to serve on the 
Governing Council of the United Nations ·Development 
Programme for a term of three years commencing 
on 1 January 1967. He invited the Council to hold 
that eleotion. · 

23. The twelve retiring members were Brazil, Italy, 
Japan, Malaysia, Nepal, Norway, PG..raguay, Rwanda, 
Senegal, the Union <;>f Soviet Socialist Republics, 
the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern 
Ireland and the United States of America. An agree
ment had been reached in the Second Committee of 
the General Assembly on the geographical distribu
tion of the twelve seats. Brazil, Cameroon, India, 
Italy, Japan, Norway, Paraguay, Senegal, Thailand, 
the Union of Soviet Socialis't Republics, the United 
Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland, 
and the United States of America were candidatas 
for election. 

At the invitation of the President, Mr. MaoLaren 
(Canada) and Mr. Nioulesou (Romanla) · aoted as 
tellers. 

A vote was taken by seoret baltot. 

Number of ballot papers: 
Invalid ballots: 
Number of valid baltots: 
Required ma}ority: 

Number of votes obta.ined: 

27 
o 

27 
14 

Italy. . • . • . . . • . • • . . • . • • • • • . • . . . 26 
Norway. . • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • 26 
United Kingdom of Great Britain and Nor-

thern Ireland. • • • • ~ • • .. • • • • • • • • • • 26 
United States of Ame rica • • • • • . • • • • • • 26 
Brazil • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • 25. 
India • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • 25 

Japan • •••••.••.• , •• , .••.•••• n , • 25 
Paraguay • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • 25' 
Senegal. . 1 1 , 1 • • • • • • • • • • • • • • " • • • 26 
Cameroon. • • , • , • • , • • • • • • • • • , • • • 24 
Thailand • • • • • • • • • • • . • • • • • • ~ • • • • · 24 
Union of Soviet Socialist Republics • • • • • 23 
Alba11ia. • • . . . • . • • .. . • . • • • . • • • .• • . 1 
Malta . . . . • . . . • , . . . ~~ . . . . .• . • • . . ., 1 
Nepal .... " , . • . . . • . . . . . . . . . • . • . 1 
Nigeria. . • • • . • • • • • • • • •- _. • • • , • • • • 1 
Pakistan. • • • • . • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • 1 
Sierra Leone • • • • . • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • 1 
United Republic of Tanzania. • • • • • • • • • 1 

Having obts.ined the re9,uired m~orltjr, Bra.zil, 
Cameroon, India., Ita.ly., Japan, Norway, Paraguay, 
Senegal, Thailand, the Union of Soviet Sooia.tist Re
publios, the United Kingdom of Grea.t Bt'ita.in and 
Northern Ireland and the Unlted Sta.tes of Amerioa 
were eteoted members of the Governing CotJ:n.oit of 

the United Na.tions Development Programm.e. 

24. The PRESfDENT announced that, in accordance 
with an agreement reachcd, Jordan had resigned 
from the Governing Council effeotive 31 December 
1966, and its seat would be filled by a Latin American 
country. Chile was a candidata for election. 

At t_)e invitation of tbe President, Mr. MaPLe.ren 
(Can.ada) and Mr. Nioulesou (Romania) aoted as te11ers. 

A vote was taken by secret ba11 'tt. 

Number of ballot papers: 
lnvalid batlots: 
Nurnber of valid ba11ots: 
Required majot:lf:y: 

Nt.tmber of votes obtained: 

27 
1 

26 
14 

Chile ~ . • . • . . . . . • . . . • . . . • . • . . • . 25 
Honduras • • • • • • • • • • . • • • • • • • • • • • 1 

Having obta.ine'd the required majorlty, Chile wa.s 
eleoted to the sea.t va.oa.ted by Jo:;:da.n. 

ELECTION OF MEMBERS OF THE EXECUTIVE 
BOARD OF THE UNITED NATIONS CHILDREN'S 
FUND 

25. The PRESIDENT in'Vited the Council to consider · 
the recommendation in paragraph 2 of the note by the 
Secretary-General (E/ 4160), concerning changas in 
the existing procedure with respect to the terms of 
office of members of the Executive Board and in the 
date and procedu1•e of Board elections of officers and 
committees. 

The reoommendation was a.pproved. 

ELECTION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE 
ON NON-GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATIONS 

26. The PRESIDENT drew attention to the fact that, 
in accordance with resolution 1099 (XL), adopted at 
its 1415th meeting, the Counoil had to eleot thirteen 
members of the Committee on Non-Governmental 
Organizations. He invited the Council to hold that 
election. 

27. Cameroon, Czechoslovakia, France, India, Mor
occo, Panama, the Philippines, Sweden, the Union 
of Soviet Sooialist Republios, the United Kingdom of 
Great Brltain and Northern Ireland, the United Re-



96 Economic and Social Council - Fortieth Session 

public of Tanzania, the United States of America 
and Venezuela were candidatas for election to the 
Committee. 

At the invitation of the President, Mr. Nouri 
(Iraq) and Mr. Suarez (Philippines) acted as tellers. 

A vote was taken by seoret ballot. 

Number of ballot papers: 
Invalid ballots: 
Number of valid ballots: 
Required majority: 

Number of votes obta.in~d: 

26 
o 

26 
14 

Cameroon. • • • • . • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • . 26 
India ..•.•.•. , .... ,. • . . . . . • . . . • 26 
Morocco. • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • 26 
Philippines • • • . • • • • • • o • • • • • • • • • • 26 
Unitcd Republic of Tanzania. • • • • • • • • • 26 
Czechoslovakia • • . • • • • • • • . • • • • • • • 25 
Sweden. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25 
Union of Soviet Socialist Republics • • • • • 25 
United Kingdom of Great B:::·itain and Nor-

thern Ireland. • • . • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • 25 

Venezuela .......... , • • • • • • • • • • • • • 25 
FI•ance • • . • • • • • • • . • • • • • • • • • • • • • 24 
Panama ••••••••••••••.••• , o • o • 24 
United States of America. . • • o • • • • • • • 24 

Having obtained the required majority, Cameroon, 
Czeohoslovakia, . France, India, Morocoo, Panama, 
the. Philippines, Sweden, the Union of Soviet Sooialist 
Republios, t'he United Kingdom of Great Britain ana 
Northern IrelW'Jd, the United Republio of Tanzania, 
the United States of An1erloa and Venezuela were 
eleoted members of the Committee on Non-Govern- · 
mental Organizations. 

Credentials of representativas (E/4161) 

28. 'fhe PRESIDENT drew the attention of the Coun
cil to the report of the President and. Vice-Presidenta 
on the credentials of representativas to the fortieth 
session of the Cmmcil (E/ 4161). 

The meeting rose at 6.35 p.m. 

--------·-·----------------------------------
Litho in U.N. 10701-July 1966-1,600 

1 




